
Contact:  Katie Small 
Tel: 01270 686465
E-Mail:          katie.small@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Environment and Regeneration Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee

Agenda
Date: Monday, 12th November, 2018
Time: 2.00 pm
Venue: Council Chamber, Municipal Buildings, Earle Street, Crewe 

CW1 2BJ

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. 
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons 
indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report.

It should be noted that Part 1 items of Cheshire East Council decision making and 
Overview and Scrutiny meetings are audio recorded and the recordings will be uploaded to 
the Council’s website

PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT

1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  (Pages 3 - 6)

To give consideration to the minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 2018

3. Declarations of Interest  

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 
non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda.

4. Whipping Declarations  

To provide an opportunity for Members to declare the existence of a party whip in relation to 
any item on the agenda.



5. Public Speaking/Open Session  

A total period of 15 minutes is allocated for members of the public to make a statement(s) on 
any matter that falls within the remit of the Committee.
 
Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes, but the Chairman will decide 
how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned, where there are a 
number of speakers.

Note: In order for officers to undertake any background research, it would be helpful if 
members of the public contacted the Scrutiny officer listed at the foot of the agenda, at least 
one working day before the meeting to provide brief details of the matter to be covered. 

6. Household Waste and Recycling Centres Review  (Pages 7 - 12)

To give consideration to a report on the review of household waste and recycling centres. 

7. Air Quality Annual Status Report  

To give consideration to the annual report – Report to follow

8. Forward Plan  (Pages 13 - 22)

To give consideration to the areas of the forward plan which fall within the remit of the 
Committee

9. Work programme  (Pages 23 - 30)

To give consideration to the work programme



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Environment and Regeneration Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

held on Monday, 15th October, 2018 at The Capesthorne Room - Town Hall, 
Macclesfield SK10 1EA

PRESENT

Councillor H Davenport (Chairman)
Councillor T Dean (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors C Browne, C Green, P Groves, S Pochin, B Roberts, G M Walton, 
J Rhodes, A Moran and S Brookfield

In attendance:

Councillor A Arnold – Portfolio Holder,  Housing and Planning
C Hindle – Head of Strategic Infrastructure
F Jordan – Acting Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director, Place
P Traynor – Head of Highways and Parking 

23 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors S Hogben, O Hunter, N 
Mannion and M Parsons. 

24 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting held on 17 September 
2018.

RESOLVED

That the minutes be approved as a correct record subject to Cllr P Groves being 
included in the list of apologies.

25 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest. 

26 WHIPPING DECLARATIONS 

There were no whipping declarations.

27 PUBLIC SPEAKING/OPEN SESSION 

There were no members of the public present wishing to speak. 

28 STRATEGIC INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAMME 



Consideration was given to a presentation on the strategic infrastructure 
programme, which detailed the borough wide 7 major schemes. In relation to 
Poynton Relief Road, it was noted that the scheme would be completed by late 
2021 and not 2020 as detailed in the presentation. 

In relation to Crewe Green roundabout, it was noted that the scheme would be 
delivered on time and within budget. Local Members wished their thanks to 
officers to be recorded for member engagement and timeliness in delivering the 
scheme

Members welcomed the replacement of Sydney Road Bridge, however, 
expressed concern about other bridges in Crewe that needed attention. It was 
highlighted to Members that the majority of bridges in Crewe were owned by 
Network Rail and Members agreed that the Council should encourage Network 
Rail to make the required improvements.

In relation to Macclesfield, it was noted that there were no significant major 
schemes, however, improvements were scheduled to the key junctions which 
were outlined in the Macclesfield Movement Strategy.

In relation to HS2, it was agreed that a report on the funding principles would be 
brought back to a future meeting of the Committee.

RESOLVED

1. That Members thanks to officers be recorded for their engagement and 
timeliness of delivering the Crewe Green roundabout scheme.

2. That a report on the funding principles of HS2 be considered by the 
Committee in due course.

29 WELL MANAGED HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE PUBLIC 
CONSULTATION FEEDBACK 

Further to the meeting held on June 2018, the Committee received feedback on 
the outcomes and progress following the Well Managed Highway Infrastructure 
Consultation. In total 93 responses were received from a range of consultees and 
stakeholders, which were highlighted within the report. Members made the 
following comments and observations:

 It was important to ensure that all schools, hospitals and areas used by 
the elderly fall within the resilient highways network.

 A similar approach should be used for the boroughs green infrastructure.
 Cycle paths needed to be gritted alongside the rest of the highways 

network.
 The provision of self help grit bins needed to be assessed, as they enable 

residents to be resilient.
 Footpaths on housing estates and town centres needed to be addressed 

as manywere in poor condition.

RESOLVED



That the Well Managed Highway Infrastructure Code of Practice be supported 
subject to the comments highlighted above. 

30 PLACE PERFORMANCE SCORECARD 2018-19 

Consideration was given to the Place performance scorecard for 2018/19 for 
quarter 1, which provided an accessible summary of performance against targets 
within the Place Department. 

In relation to PIH004, it was noted that customer satisfaction levels had 
decreased and officers were investigating the cause of this.

In relation to PCO002 – average speed to answer calls, it was agreed that that 
this was a difficult target to achieve and that the quality of the call was more 
important than the speed it took to answer calls.

In relation to PCO005, it was agreed that a written response providing members 
with further detail and explanation about the NHS invoices referenced would be 
circulated to members outside of the meeting. 

RESOLVED

That a written response in relation to PCO005 be circulated to members outside 
of the meeting.

31 FORWARD PLAN 

Consideration was given to the areas of the forward plan which fell within the 
remit of the committee.

RESOLVED

That the forward plan be received

32 WORK PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the work programme. It was agreed that an update 
the impact of the legislation relating to houses of multiple occupancy would be 
considered by the Committee on 21 January 2019.

RESOLVED

That an update the impact of the legislation relating to houses of multiple 
occupancy would be considered by the Committee on 21 January 2019.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 3.50 pm

Councillor H Davenport (Chairman)





OFFICIAL
1

BRIEFING REPORT 

Environment and Regeneration overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting: 12 November 2018

Report Title: Review of Household waste recycling centre developments

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Don Stockton – Portfolio Holder - Environment

Author: Ralph Kemp

Senior Officer: Executive Director - Place

1. Introduction and Policy Context

1.1. During 2017 and 2018 the authority implemented a number of changes to 
the household waste recycling centre provision in line with the authority’s 
waste strategy and following extensive consultation. This report to the 
Environment and Regeneration overview and Scrutiny Committee sets out 
the delivery of these proposals

1.2. The proposals that were introduced included:

 Closure of Arclid household waste recycling centre in September 2017 
– the closure of our smallest and least used site.  This proposal has 
been delivered with very few incidents of waste being abandoned at 
the closed site and no queueing issues at other sites

 Introduction of rubble/construction waste charging – rolled out in 
January 2018, the amount of material through this waste stream has 
dropped significantly (over 80%) with no measured impact on rubble 
fly tipping rates.  

 Reduction of opening hours at all sites – introduced in November 
2017, this proposal has seen our sites open from 8.30-4pm in the 
winter and 8.30-5pm in the summer.

 Enabling rubble trade waste to be accepted – this provided a new 
outlet for very small scale rubble trade waste, one of the sources of 
rural fly tipping. 



OFFICIAL

2. Background 

2.1. One aspect of the Council’s Municipal Waste Management Strategy 2030, 
was to review the household waste recycling centre provision across the 
borough. This detailed review provided a range of options that, if the 
authority chose to adopt, would ensure that the service was fit for purpose, 
efficient and delivered industry best practice. 

2.2. A borough wide consultation was carried out (Nov 2016 - Jan 2017) that 
resulted in over 2,300 responses. A brief summary of results, overall, show 
a majority of respondents supported each of the 4 proposals within the 
council’s preferred option:

 60% supported the closure of Arclid HWRC, 28% objected to it
 55% supported the introduction of charges for disposal of rubble, 31% 

objected
 63% supported a reduction of opening hours at all sites, 25% objected
 68% supported opening sites to trade waste, 15% objected.

2.3. The consultation report and recommendations were taken to Full Council 
for discussion (see minute items no.88 and no.86 3 & 4). Council agreed to 
implement the proposals, as laid out within the consultation material, with 
the exception of the closure of the Arclid HWRC. The decision on whether 
to close Arclid was deferred, following representation from Sandbach Town 
Council. Following the pause to discuss the Sandbach Town Council 
proposals it was concluded that there were no viable alternatives to closure 
and this was taken to Cabinet for approval on July 11th 2017.

3. Briefing Information

3.1. Closure of Arclid:  Whilst there were initial complaints, following the closure, 
this soon ceased and residents have now adjusted to using other sites. 
There were fewer than 10 incidents of waste being left at the closed site 
and now there are none. 

3.2. Reduced hours: Our careful analysis of site usage showed that there were 
occasions during the day when the number of users was very low. During 
the spring opening hours from 8am – 6pm in March and April 2016, only 
3% of all site visits took place after 5pm, and only 4% of all site visits 
occurred before 9am. Traffic surveys in June indicated that during summer 
opening hours, across all days and all sites, 84% of visits took place 
between 9am and 5pm, and around 12% of visits during summer opening 
hours took place between the hours of 5pm and 8pm. As the chart below 
shows In order to run our sites more efficiently it was clear that the opening 
hours could be reduced to deliver this.

Figure 1 - Site visit timings



OFFICIAL
3

3.3. The levels of complaints concerning the reduced hours has been minimal 
and the incidents of waste being left at shut sites, whilst increasing initially, 
as residents learned of the new times, have now decreased.

3.4. Charging for rubble/construction waste: The proposal to charge for 
rubble/construction waste has delivered significant positive change to the 
household waste recycling centres. As anticipated by our specialists, the 
amount of material that is managed through this waste stream has dropped 
drastically, by over 80%. During an average month 800 tonnes of rubble 
used to be handled, this is now nearer to 120 tonnes.  

3.5. This material may be being used by residents in their own gardens or 
managed through the use of skips. There was concern that the incidents of 
fly-tipping would increase greatly as a result of this charge, this has not 
been the case in the first quarters of operation as can be seen in the graph 
below (Figure 2). 



OFFICIAL

 Figure 2

Ap
ril

M
ay

Ju
ne Ju
ly

Au
gu

st

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

De
ce

m
be

r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

2015/16
2016/17
2017/18
2018-19

Flytipping incidents 2015-2018

 

3.6. Additional benefits. The anticipated decrease in rubble tonnages has 
delivered the added benefit of there being fewer users of the site and 
therefore easier movement around them. Few journeys and less material 
means there are fewer vehicles on the road as the material is managed 
more locally. It would also seem that since the charging introduction the 
levels of residual waste have also decreased, though we are not sure if this 
in linked to the introduction of the rubble charge.

3.7. Local business waste: Welcoming local businesses to dispose of their 
rubble/construction waste through our sites has also provided an outlet for 
very small traders to dispose of small quantities of waste which would other 
wise have incurred a much greater charge at commercial sites.   

4. Implications

4.1. Legal Implications 

4.1.1. The Council is under a duty under s.51 of the Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 to arrange for the disposal of controlled waste 
collected in its area and for places to be provided at which persons 
resident in its area may deposit their household waste. 

4.1.2. Final decisions on permanent changes to the Household Waste 
Recycling Centre services have been subject to public consultation 
and the responses to the consultation have been conscientiously 
taken in to account in making any decisions in accordance with 
established principles of consultation. 



OFFICIAL
5

4.2. Financial Implications

4.2.1. The Councils MTFs set out savings targets for this project based on 
external consultancy estimates of what could be achieved. Against a 
savings target of £150,000 for the closure of Arclid household waste 
recycling centre the Council has achieved £100,000 permanent 
saving. 

4.2.2. The Council’s MTFS required a further £576,000 from 2018-19 
relating to the other measures introduced. It is too early to confirm in 
year what the final savings on this element will be, however the 
Council has made assumptions in its 2019-20 budget proposals 
based on very early data for the permanent saving to be £260,000 for 
this element. 

4.2.3. This would mean combined permanent savings from this project 
would be in the order of £360,000 per annum. This is subject to 
change however based on usage over the year.  

4.3. Human Resources Implications

4.3.1. None





FORWARD PLAN FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31ST JANUARY 2019

This Plan sets out the key decisions which the Executive expects to take over the period 
indicated above. The Plan is rolled forward every month. A key decision is defined in the 
Council’s Constitution as:

“an executive decision which is likely –
 
(a) to result in the local authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of 

savings which are, significant having regard to the local authority’s budget for 
the service or function to which the decision relates; or

 
(b) to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an 

area comprising one or more wards or electoral divisions in the area of the 
local authority.

 
For the purpose of the above, savings or expenditure are “significant” if they are 
equal to or greater than £1M.”

Reports relevant to key decisions, and any listed background documents, may be viewed 
at any of the Council’s Offices/Information Centres 5 days before the decision is to be 
made. Copies of, or extracts from, these documents may be obtained on the payment of a 
reasonable fee from the following address:

Democratic Services Team
Cheshire East Council
c/o Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach Cheshire CW11 1HZ
Telephone:  01270 686472

However, it is not possible to make available for viewing or to supply copies of reports or 
documents the publication of which is restricted due to confidentiality of the information 
contained.

A record of each key decision is published within 6 days of it having been made. This is 
open for public inspection on the Council's Website, at Council Information Centres and at 
Council Offices.

This Forward Plan also provides notice that the Cabinet, or a Portfolio Holder, may decide 
to take a decision in private, that is, with the public and press excluded from the meeting. 
In accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access 
to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, 28 clear days’ notice must be given of any 
decision to be taken in private by the Cabinet or a Portfolio Holder, with provision for the 
public to make representations as to why the decision should be taken in public.  In such 
cases, Members of the Council and the public may make representations in writing to the 
Democratic Services Team Manager using the contact details below. A further notice of 
intention to hold the meeting in private must then be published 5 clear days before the 



meeting, setting out any representations received about why the meeting should be held in 
public, together with a response from the Leader and the Cabinet.

The list of decisions in this Forward Plan indicates whether a decision is to be taken in 
private, with the reason category for the decision being taken in private being drawn from 
the list overleaf: 

1. Information relating to an individual
2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 

(including to authority holding that information)
4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 

consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising 
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office 
holders under the authority

5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal and professional privilege could be 
maintained in legal proceedings

6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes (a) to give under any 
enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a 
person; or (b) to make an order or direction under any enactment

7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the 
prevention, investigation of prosecution of crime

If you would like to make representations about any decision to be conducted in private at 
a meeting, please email:

Paul Mountford, Executive Democratic Services Officer 
paul.mountford@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Such representations must be received at least 10 clear working days before the date of 
the Cabinet or Portfolio Holder meeting concerned.

Where it has not been possible to meet the 28 clear day rule for publication of notice of a 
key decision or intention to meet in private, the relevant notices will be published as soon 
as possible in accordance with the requirements of the Constitution.

The law and the Council's Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made. Any 
decision made in this way will be published in the same way.

mailto:paul.mountford@cheshireeast.gov.uk


Forward Plan

Key Decision 
and 

Private 
Non-Key 
Decision

Decisions to be Taken Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision

Proposed 
Consultation

How to make 
representation 
to the decision 

made

Private/
Confidential 

and 
paragraph 

number
CE 18/19-13 
Supply of 
Household 
Recycling and 
Waste Bins

To authorise officers to 
take all necessary actions 
to implement the proposal 
to charge for the supply of 
new and replacement 
household waste and 
recycling bins and 
containers, following 
consultation as part of the 
MTFS, acceptance at 
February Council and 
borough-wide consultation.

Leader of the 
Council

Not before 
13th Sep 2018

Consultation has 
been carried out for 
the proposal and a 
summary is 
included at 
Appendix 1 to the 
Report.

Ralph Kemp N/A

CE 18/19-18 
Sexual Health 
Recommissionin
g

To seek approval to 
recommission sexual 
health services across 
Cheshire East.

Cabinet 9 Oct 2018 Nichola Glover-
Edge

N/A



Key Decision Decisions to be 
Taken

Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision

Proposed 
Consultation

How to make 
representation 
to the decision 

made

Private/
Confidential 

and 
paragraph 

number
CE 18/19-19 
Emotionally 
Health Children 
and Young 
People

To seek approval for the 
recommissioning and 
combining of the 
Emotionally Healthy 
Schools Programme with 
the Early Help Emotional 
Health and Wellbeing 
contracts, and 
subsequently 
commissioning an 
Emotionally Healthy 
Children and Young 
People Programme.

Cabinet 9 Oct 2018 Nichola Glover-
Edge

N/A

CE 17/18-62 
Route and Rota 
Optimisation

To delegate authority to 
the Executive Director 
Place, in consultation with 
the Portfolio Holder for 
Environment and the 
Director of Legal Services, 
to develop and implement 
the route and rota 
optimisation proposals 
through Ansa 
Environmental Services 
Ltd.

Portfolio Holder for 
Environment

October 2018 Ralph Kemp N/A



Key Decision Decisions to be 
Taken

Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision

Proposed 
Consultation

How to make 
representation 
to the decision 

made

Private/
Confidential 

and 
paragraph 

number
CE 18/19-10 
Everybody Sport 
and Recreation 
Performance 
Report 2017/18 
and Leisure 
Operating 
Agreement - 
Proposed 
Extension

Cabinet will be asked to 
note the Leisure Trust 
Annual Report for 2017/18 
and to approve the 
extension of the current 
Leisure Operating 
Agreement with Everybody 
Sport and Recreation for a 
further five years to allow 
the Trust to continue to 
improve the delivery of the 
Council’s leisure services 
and outcomes in terms of 
health and wellbeing for 
local residents.

Cabinet 6 Nov 2018 Mark Wheelton N/A

CE 18/19-17 
Approval to 
Commission 
Universal 
Information and 
Advice Service

This is a contract for 
providing impartial 
information and advice 
services. The current 
contract expires on 31st 
March 2019. Authority will 
be sought to commission a 
new service with effect 
from 1st April 2019.

Cabinet 6 Nov 2018 Liz Rimmer N/A



Key Decision Decisions to be 
Taken

Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision

Proposed 
Consultation

How to make 
representation 
to the decision 

made

Private/
Confidential 

and 
paragraph 

number
CE 18/19-22 
Extra Care 
Housing: Care 
Provision

To authorise the officers to 
take all necessary actions 
to implement the proposal 
to re-commission care 
provision in five Extra Care 
Housing schemes, review 
the viability of 
commissioning care in 
other such schemes, and 
consult on Care Banding 
and Care Charges within 
the Extra Care Housing 
schemes.

Cabinet 6 Nov 2018 Nichola Glover-
Edge

N/A

CE 18/19-24 
Acquisition of 
Parcels of Land 
in North 
Congleton for 
Future 
Employment 
Uses

To seek authority to enter 
into conditional contracts 
and/or option agreements 
for the purchase of parcels 
of land in north Congleton 
for future employment 
uses.

Cabinet 6 Nov 2018 Kathryn Carr Fully exempt 
- para 3

CE 18/19-1 
Havannah 
Primary School - 
Change in Age 
Range

To approve a proposed 
change in age range from 
4-11 to 3-11 for 
implementation in October 
2018, having given due 
consideration to the 
response to the statutory 
proposal notice.

Cabinet 4 Dec 2018 Jacky Forster N/A



Key Decision Decisions to be 
Taken

Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision

Proposed 
Consultation

How to make 
representation 
to the decision 

made

Private/
Confidential 

and 
paragraph 

number
CE 18/19-20 My 
Life, My Choice: 
A Strategy for 
People with 
Learning 
Disabilities

To consider and approve 
the draft Learning 
Disabilities Strategy and 
authorise the officers to 
take all necessary actions 
to implement the strategy.

Cabinet 4 Dec 2018 N/A

CE 18/19-21 
Hollins View. 
Macclesfield - 
Development 
Options

To authorise officers to 
undertake a compliant 
tendering exercise to bring 
forward the development 
of the Hollins View site for 
the provision of affordable 
housing.

Cabinet 4 Dec 2018 Karen Carsberg Fully exempt 
- para 3

CE 18/19-27 
Advocacy and 
Independent 
Visitor Service - 
Adults, Children 
and Young 
People

To seek approval for the 
recommissioning of an 
integrated all age 
advocacy and Independent 
Visitor service. 

Cabinet 4 Dec 2018 Nichola Glover-
Edge

N/A

CE 18/19-11 
Adoption of 
Community 
Infrastructure 
Levy

To seek agreement to 
adopt the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
Charging Schedule 
following public 
examination on 12/13 
September 2018.

Council 13 Dec 2018 Adrian Fisher, 
Head of Planning 
and Policy



Key Decision Decisions to be 
Taken

Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision

Proposed 
Consultation

How to make 
representation 
to the decision 

made

Private/
Confidential 

and 
paragraph 

number
CE 18/19-25 
Supplementary 
Planning 
Document - The 
Garden Village 
at Handforth - 
Final Approval

To seek approval to 
publish a Supplementary 
Planning Document for the 
Garden Village at 
Handforth.

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing, Planning 
and Regeneration

21 Dec 2018 Adrian Fisher, 
Head of Planning 
and Policy

N/A

CE 18/19-26 
Statement of 
Community 
Involvement - 
Final Approval

To seek approval to 
publish a revised 
Statement of Community 
Involvement which will set 
out how the Council will 
involve and engage with 
the public and partners in 
pursuit of its planning 
functions. The Statement 
covers both planning 
applications and planning 
policy. The preparation of 
the Statement is a legal 
requirement.

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing, Planning 
and Regeneration

21 Dec 2018 Adrian Fisher, 
Head of Planning 
and Policy

N/A

CE 18/19-29 
Macclesfield 
Leisure Centre 
Redevelopment 
- Approval to 
Enter into a 
Contract

To approve the letting of a 
contract for the 
redevelopment of 
Macclesfield Leisure 
Centre.

Cabinet 4 Dec 2018 Mark Wheelton N/A



Key Decision Decisions to be 
Taken

Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision

Proposed 
Consultation

How to make 
representation 
to the decision 

made

Private/
Confidential 

and 
paragraph 

number
CE 18/19-30 
Macclesfield 
Town Centre 
Regeneration - 
Castle Street 
Public Realm 
Enhancement 
Scheme

To approve the awarding 
of a contract for public 
realm enhancement works 
on Castle Street, 
Macclesfield.

Cabinet 4 Dec 2018 Jo Wise N/A

CE 18/19-15 
Mental Health 
Strategy

To seek approval from 
Cabinet for the adoption of 
the Cheshire East Mental 
Health Strategy.

Cabinet 15 Jan 2019 Lucy Cooper N/A

CE 18/19-23 
Community 
Centres

Partnerships and 
Communities team to 
cease their management 
and operation of 3 
community centres within 
Cheshire East.

Cabinet 15 Jan 2019 Fiona Reynolds, 
Director of Public 
Health

N/A

CE 18/19-28 
Cheshire East 
Integration 
Strategy

To authorise officers to 
take all necessary actions 
to implement the Cheshire 
East Integration Strategy. 
The purpose of the 
Strategy will be to adopt a 
localised approach to 
improving integration and 
cohesion among 
communities through the 
targeted delivery of 
projects.

Cabinet 15 Jan 2019 N/A



Key Decision Decisions to be 
Taken

Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision

Proposed 
Consultation

How to make 
representation 
to the decision 

made

Private/
Confidential 

and 
paragraph 

number
CE 18/19-31 
Macclesfield 
Town Centre 
Strategic 
Regeneration 
Framework

To approve a strategic 
regeneration framework for 
Macclesfield Town Centre 
for public consultation.

Cabinet 5 Feb 2019 Jo Wise N/A

CE 17/18-51 
Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy 2019-
2022

To approve the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy 
for 2019-2022, 
incorporating the Council’s 
priorities, budget, policy 
proposals and capital 
programme.

Council 21 Feb 2019 Alex Thompson N/A



OFFICIAL

Environment and Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny 

Date of Meeting:  12 November 2018

Report Title: Work Programme 

Portfolio Holder:  Cllrs A Arnold, P Bates and D Stockton 

Senior Officer: Acting Director of  Legal Services

1. Report Summary

1.1. To review items in the Work Programme listed in the schedule attached, 
together with any other items suggested by Committee Members.

2. Recommendation

2.1. That the work programme be reviewed.

3. Reasons for Recommendation

3.1 It is good practice to review the work programme and update accordingly

4. Other Options Considered

4.1. There are no further options to consider.      

5. Background

5.1 The schedule attached has been updated following the last meeting of the 
committee.

5.2 Members are asked to review the schedule attached to this report, and if 
appropriate, add new items or delete items that no longer require any scrutiny 
activity. When selecting potential topics, Members should have regard to the 
Council’s new three year plan and also to the general criteria listed below, which 
should be applied to all potential items when considering whether any Scrutiny 
activity is appropriate.

5.3 The following questions should be asked in respect of each potential work 
programme item:

 Does the issue fall within a corporate priority;

 Is the issue of key interest to the public;



OFFICIAL
2

 Does the matter relate to a poor or declining performing service for 
which there is no obvious explanation; 

 Is there a pattern of budgetary overspends; 

 Is it a matter raised by external audit management letters and or 
audit reports?

 Is there a high level of dissatisfaction with the service;

5.4 If during the assessment process any of the following emerge, then the 
topic should be rejected:

 The topic is already being addressed elsewhere

 The matter is subjudice

 Scrutiny cannot add value or is unlikely to be able to conclude an 
investigation within the specified timescale

6. Implications 

6.1. Legal Implications

6.1.1. There are no legal implications at this stage.  

6.2. Finance Implications

6.2.1. There are no financial implications at this stage

6.3. Equality Implications

6.3.1. There are no equalities implications at this stage. 

6.4. Human Resources Implications

6.4.1. There are no human resources implications at this stage.  

6.5. Risk Management Implications

6.5.1. There are no risk management implications at this stage. 

6.6. Rural Communities Implications

6.6.1. There are no implications for rural communities.

6.7. Implications for Children & Young People 

6.7.1. There and no implications for children and young people at this stage. 



OFFICIAL
3

6.8. Public Health Implications

6.8.1. There are no direct implications for public health.

7. Ward Members Affected

7.1. All. 

8. Access to Information

8.1. The background papers can be inspected by contacting the report author

9. Contact Information

9.1. Any questions relating to this report should be directed to the following 
officer:

Name: Katie Small 

Job Title: Scrutiny Officer 

Email: Katie.small@cheshireeast.gov.uk





Environment and Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme – October 
2018

OFFICIAL

     
Date: 12.11.2018
Time: 2.00pm
Venue: Council 
Chamber, Crewe 

Date:21.01. 2019
Time: 2.00pm
Venue: Committee 
Suite, Sandbach 

Date:18.03.2019
Time: 2.00pm
Venue: 
Capesthorne Room

Item Description/purpose of 
report/comments

Outcome Lead Officer/ 
organisation/
Portfolio Holder

Suggested by Current position Key Dates/
Deadlines

Air Quality Annual 
Status Report

To scrutinise the Air Quality 
Annual Status Report

Cheshire is a 
green and 
sustainable 
place

Executive 
Director Place

Committee Committee 
report

12 
November 
2018

Household waste 
recycling centres 
review

To scrutinise the results of the 
consultation.  Report received on 
21 March.  Further progress 
reports TBA.

Cheshire is a 
green and 
sustainable 
place.

Strategic 
Commissioner 
for Waste. 
Portfolio Holder 
for Regeneration

Strategic 
Commissioner for 
Waste

Committee 
update report

12 
November 
2018

Local Transport Plan
(LTP)

To give consideration to the final 
draft prior to it being considered 
by cabinet. 

Cheshire is a 
green and 
sustainable 
place.

Director and 
Acting deputy 
Chief Executive

Director and 
Acting Chief 
Executive

Committee 
Report

21 January 
2019

Bus Routes Review To receive an update report 
following the recent bus routes 
review.

Cheshire is a 
green and 
sustainable 
place.

Executive 
Director-Place 
and PH For 
Children and 
Families

Committee Committee 
Report

Part 2 Item

21 January 
2019 

Performance 
Scorecard

To scrutinise the performance of 
the areas of work which fall within 
the remit of the Committee

Our local 
communities are 
strong and 
supportive/ 

Executive 
Director for 
Place

Committee Committee 
Report

Quarterly 

21 January 
2019
18 March 
2019



Environment and Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme – October 
2018

OFFICIAL

Cheshire is a 
green and 
sustainable 
place.

Reports

Budget To scrutinise the budget 
proposals relevant to the 
committee 

Cheshire is a 
green and 
sustainable 
place.
Cheshire East 
has a strong and 
resilient 
economy

Director and 
Acting deputy 
Chief Executive

Director Committee 
Report

21 January 
2019

Tatton Park Vision To scrutinise phase two of Tatton 
Park Vision

Cheshire is a 
green and 
sustainable 
place.
Cheshire East 
has a strong and 
resilient 
economy

Head of Rural & 
Cultural 
Economy

Committee Committee 
Report

18 March 
2019

HMO Legislation To receive an update on the 
impact of the HMO legislation.

Cheshire is a 
green and 
sustainable 
place.
Cheshire East 
has a strong and 
resilient 
economy

Director and 
Acting deputy 
Chief Executive

Committee Committee 
report

18 March 
2019

Flood Risk 
Management 

To scrutinise flood risk 
management in Cheshire East. 

Cheshire is a 
green and 
sustainable 
place

Commissioning 
Manager for 
Highways

Scrutiny 
requirement

Annual review 18 March 
2019

Taxi Licensing/ To scrutinise taxi licensing and Director and Committee Committee 18 March 



Environment and Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme – October 
2018

OFFICIAL

Site Visit

 Middlewich Waste Transfer Station-Visit to be arranged – November/December 

TSS vehicle standards vehicle standards. Acting deputy 
Chief Executive

report 2019

Food waste 
Collection, Organic 
waste Treatment 
Solution

To scrutinise the progress made. 
Report received on 21 March. 

Further progress reports TBA

Cheshire is a 
green and 
sustainable 
place

Strategic 
Commissioner 
for Waste.
Portfolio Holder 
for Regeneration

Strategic 
Commissioner for 
Waste.

Update report
TBA




	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Household Waste and Recycling Centres Review
	8 Forward Plan
	9 Work programme
	Work Programme - Environment and Regeneration


